
Overview and Scrutiny Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.

If any member of the public wishes to raise a question or comment on any of the items 
listed, which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, 
by sending an email to  decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place. 

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

Sian Roxborough
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 5 August 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_ZDkwYjc4ODYtYjA0Zi00ZjJkLTkzMjMtZjM0ODU1ZTBlNDk1%
40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Outturn Budget Monitoring report 

Lead Member for Finance and Support Services

(Pages 1 - 6)

4  Briefing: government support - Covid 19. 

Lead Member for Finance and Support Services

5  Minutes of the meeting held on the 1 July 2020 (Pages 7 - 12)

6  Work programme (Pages 13 - 16)

7  Any other business 

Public Document Pack

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3318
Karen Berry -Democratic Services Manager E-Mail: karen.berry@salford.gov.uk



Page 1 of 6

ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE  CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

TO
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD

5 AUGUST 2020

TITLE: 2019/20 – BUDGET MONITORING – FINAL OUTTURN POSITION

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Board Members note the final outturn position regarding the 2019/20 revenue budget, general 
balances, savings programme and capital programme.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The general fund position for the year end is a balanced budget in line with the Quarter 3 forecast 
reported to the board earlier this year and the council’s budget strategy. 

There is an adverse variation of £6.3m relating to DSG funding which has been carried forward to 
2020/21.  This will be incorporated into the DSG recovery plan previously reported to the board.

General balances remain at £13.2m, above the risk-assessed minimum level but  below the 
desirable level of reserves identified in the 2020/21 budget report. 

The capital programme outturn position is expenditure of £80.164m against estimated spend of 
£96.568m.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Service budget monitoring reports to Lead Members, savings proformas and other finance working 
papers.

KEY DECISION: NO

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Budget Strategy

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

Equality impact assessments are assessed at an individual savings level by the service group 
responsible.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page 2 of 6

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:

Key budgetary control risks are identified in this report, including forecast variances and risk levels 
associated with the realisation of savings proposals.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Not applicable to this report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Report produced by the Finance team working with budget managers across all service groups. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

Not applicable to this report

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

All, council-wide matter

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Michelle Cowley TEL NO: 0161 793 2520

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 2



Page 3 of 6

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report sets out the final outturn position of expenditure against the 2019/20 revenue and 
capital budgets including a summary of general balances. The position is incorporated into the 
council’s draft annual statement of accounts which has been submitted to our appointed 
external auditor for review.

2 FINAL OUTTURN BUDGET MONITORING POSITION 

2.1 The final outturn position by service group is shown in Table 1. The figures now include year-
end adjustments to services for notional capital charges and other central adjustments, with 
commensurate budget adjustments so as not to affect the variance position. The figures in the 
table are net of savings. 

2.2 The general fund position for the year end is a balanced budget in line with the Q3 forecast  
presented to this board. This reflects the corporate approach to managing the budget 
pressures within People services by utilising underspends achieved by other service groups  
and central budgets where possible.  

Table 1
  Service Group

Annual 
budget

Outturn 
expenditure

Year end 
variance 
Fav/(Adv)

RAG 
Rating*

£m £m £m

General Fund
People (Children’s) - GF 78.030 83.401 (5.371) A (Red)
People (Adults) 66.637 67.093 (0.456) A (Red)
Place 70.374 70.360 0.014 F (Green)
Service Reform 9.760 9.554 0.206 F (Green)
Public Health 19.002 18.623 0.380 F (Green)
Precepts and Charges 41.254 41.254 - F (Green)
Capital Financing 48.704 46.265 2.439 F (Green)
Other budgets (101.379) (104.167) 2.788 F (Green)

Total General Fund 232.383 232.383 (0.000) F (Green)

People (Children’s) - DSG 43.037 49.340 (6.303) A (Red)

Year end position

2.3 The variances in service group totals above are after any transfers made to/from earmarked 
reserves. Service groups are aware of their outturn position and a summary will also be 
included in the relevant service groups monitoring report for May 19.

2.4 The main drivers of the general fund variations are summarised below.  

People (Children’s) GF – The year end position for Children’s Services is an adverse variance 
of £5.371m. 

Page 3



Page 4 of 6

Childrens’s social care  (primarily Looked After Children) and SEN Transport have continued 
to experience significant financial pressures as reported throughout the year. Due to the risk 
sharing agreement approved by integrated fund partners, the council is bearing only part of 
this pressure with the charge back to the council under the risk share agreement for the 
Children’s section of the Integrated Fund being £5.017m

People (Adults) – The outturn position is a £0.456m adverse variance. Adult social care 
continues to experience significant budget pressures with the impact on the council being 
£0.605m in 2019/20 due to the pressure being shared with health partners through the 
integrated fund risk sharing arrangement. There were some other offsetting favourable 
variances in relation to both mainstream budgets and income budgets that supported the 
council’s contribution to the integrated fund.

Place – The final position at year end is a favourable variance of £0.014m, the service group 
committed to a break even position in the last budget monitoring report which has been 
achieved.

Service Reform – The position at year end is a favourable variance of £0.206m. This is in line 
with the previous forecasted outturn.

Public Health - The position for the service group at year end is a £0.380m favourable 
variance. This is due to an underspend on salaries and lower than budgeted demand on the 
LES Tobacco service.

Capital Financing - variance due to the need for borrowing to fund capital expenditure being 
lower than originally forecast which has delayed further borrowing from the PWLB, reduced 
the interest costs on temporary borrowing and reduced the MRP chargeable for the year. 

Other budgets
As agreed within our budget strategy, a number of mitigating actions were planned in order to 
deliver a balanced budget position at year-end.  These include the application of centrally held 
grants and favourable variations, for example the airport dividend.

2.5 There is an adverse variation of £6.303m on the schools budget funded by the Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG). This variance is mainly due to pressures within the High Needs block 
resulting from increasing demand and additional council statutory duties for 19 to 25 year olds 
as a result of the Children’s and Families Act for which no additional funding has been provided 
by central government. The outturn variance will be carried forward and will be an added 
pressure to the High Needs block in 2020/21.  During 2019/20 the council prepared a recovery 
plan which was subsequently agreed with the Education and Skills Funding Agency – it is 
anticipated that progress against this plan will be reported through the financial year.

3 GENERAL BALANCES 

3.1 The general fund balances position as at 31 March 2020 is unchanged as shown in Table 2 

Page 4



Page 5 of 6

Table 2   Budgeted
 £000
At 31 March 2019 13,243
Variation in 2019/20 0
  
At 31 March 2020  13,243

3.2 This level of reserves is above the risk-assessed minimum level of £12.680m set out in the 
2020/21 budget report however, members should note that the desirable level of reserves was 
estimated to be £22.055m. 

4 ACHIEVEMENT OF SAVINGS

4.1   During the year service groups have monitored the achievement of  2019/20 savings. 
Where savings were not achieved, for example where only a part year saving was realised, 
service groups identified mitigating actions to offset any resulting budget pressure.

5 CAPITAL OUTTURN 

5.1 The final capital outturn expenditure position is detailed in table 3. The table highlights the 
anticipated year-end programme of £96.568m and the outturn spend of £80.164m. 

Table 3 – Capital Programme Outturn 2019/20
 

Programme Actual Variance
£m £m £m

Place 82.966 68.280 14.686
People - Children's 1.722 3.028 (1.305)
People - Adults 6.210 4.162 2.048
Service Reform 5.670 4.695 0.975
Total 96.568 80.164 16.404

Service group

5.2 Table 4 illustrates how the final 2019/20 capital outturn was funded.
Table 4 – Capital Resources Outturn 2019/20 

Programme Actual Variance
£m £m £m

Unsupported borrowing - self financing 42.529 33.474 9.054
Unsupported borrowing - general support 32.547 25.279 7.268
Capital receipts - 0.299 (0.299)
Internal resources total 75.075 59.052 16.023

Grants 18.611 17.850 0.761
Other contributions 2.882 3.262 (0.380)
External resources total 21.492 21.112 0.381

Total resources 96.568 80.164 16.404

Resource

Page 5



Page 6 of 6

5.3 The variance between the programme and the actual spend relates to schemes to be re-
profiled and rolled into the 2020/21 programme.  In setting the programme there is an 
acknowledgement that long-term projects may not incur expenditure in a specific year with 
funds required to be carried forward to complete the project in successive years. In financing 
the capital programme, the use of external funding has been maximised where possible 
allowing the use of council resources to be carried forward. 

5.4  The impact of re-profiling from the final 2019/20 outturn on the 2020/21 capital programme will 
be reflected in the June 2020 budget monitoring report.

6 RECOMMENDATION

6.1 Board members are requested to note the final outturn position regarding the 2019/20 revenue 
budget, general balances, savings programme and capital programme.

Joanne Hardman
Chief Finance Officer

Page 6



1

Overview and Scrutiny Board 

Held on Wednesday 1 July 2020 
(Live Teams meeting)

Present
Councillors D Jolley (in the chair), K Garrido, L. Turner, J King,  M. Morris, T. Burch, 
L. Nelson R. Sharpe and A Brocklehurst  

Lead Members:
Bill Hinds                            Lead Member for Finance and Support Services
Councillor Bentham            Executive Support for Workforce and Industrial Relations

Officers:
Debbie Brown                   Strategic Director, Service Reform
Steven Fry                        Assistant Director, Digital & Customer Services
Sam Betts                         Assistant Director, Human resources
Chris Hesketh                   Head of Financial Management
Karen Berry                       Democratic Service Manager

1.         Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Bellamy and Joanne 
Hardman  

2. Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3. COVID-19 recovery action planning - positions statements.

3.1 Finance

As highlighted by Councillor Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services 
in his introduction; COVID 19 is having a profound financial impact on residents, the local 
business economy and public sector institutions including the council. The financial impact 
on the council is against the backdrop of several years of budget cuts for local government.

The financial aspect of the position statement concentrates on:
 Expenditure and income pressures
 Reserves and financial resilience

Chris Hesketh, Head of Financial Management reported the latest estimate of COVID 
pressures provided to MHCLG in June indicated an overall pressure of £55m. The headline 
position is summarised in the table 1 of the position statement.

The council has had to make assumptions about the length and severity of the impact and 
its financial effect on residents and businesses, at this stage the evidence is limited. Officers 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



2

will continue to revise the councils estimates and forecast as more evidence becomes 
available.

The allocation of funding is currently not enough to meet the deficit. The government has
indicated that a further “support package” of assistance will be made available to local
government but it is unclear how much additional funding this could mean.

Councillor Hinds referred to media reports about section 114 notices. He explained that the 
council will do everything possible to avoid issuing a section 114 notice. And the council will 
continue to review and monitor our overall financial position as set out in the position 
statement and continue to lobby the government for more funds. 

In response to a question, it was explained that the ‘potential use of £4m of reserves will 
come from a mixture of general and earmarked reserves, which includes the airport reserve.

RESOLVED; THAT, officers to submit a more detailed report for the Board meeting on 
Wednesday 5 August 2020, detailing precise areas of shortfall.

3.2 Workforce

Councillor Bentham, Executive Support for workforce and Industrial Relations 
introduced this aspect of the report, and in doing so gave her thanks to all staff who 
have responded to the crisis, adapted to new ways of working in a very short time 
period. 

Sam Betts, Assistant Director provided a detailed overview of the workforce 
arrangements and support implemented since lockdown and arrangements going 
forward. 

MyWork Programme had prior to lockdown commenced on progressing new ways of 
working, which stood the council in a favourable position with regards to ICT etc and 
officers were able to continue to run most services from home.

Resources were quickly deployed to successfully maintain continuity of front-line 
services to the most vulnerable and introduce extra support to those who were and 
are most in need.

The MyWork Board are co-ordinating the workforce and workspaces strand of our 
recovery plan; ensuring a co-design approach  in developing our future ways of 
working.

The plans for workforce and work spaces will all be developed based upon a number 
of key principles:

 Health, safety and wellbeing first;
 Build on our values and the Spirit of Salford to maintain the sense of team and 

Salford identity;
 Maintaining frontline services;
 Maximising digital tools and technologies to work effectively and stay 

connected;
 Focus on outcomes;
 Enable maximum flexibility;

Page 8



3

 Ensure inclusivity;
 Workforce engagement and co-design of future ways of working.

The MyWork programme has been split in to two clear phases:
 phase one is our short-term plan for the next six months. 
 Phase two is our medium to long-term strategy taking the opportunity to think 

more creatively about how, where and when we work and how we use the 
workspaces that we have available.

The default position remains that those that can work from home must continue to do 
so.

All staff working from home have been asked to complete the ‘safe home working
practice health check’ which is based on the Health and Safety Executive Display 
Screen Equipment (DSE) risk assessment. Members of the Board were assured that 
staff requiring specialist/adapted equipment have been able to access it - health and 
safety of all colleagues being of upmost importance. 

Workforce communications and engagement has been vital throughout and officers 
have maintained regular and ongoing dialogue with the trade unions.

The position statement prompted the following observations:
 Considerations of how we now utilise office space going forward if a high % of 

the workforce can remain working from home;
 Request that councillors are also contacted to check on health and safety 

issues – agreed;
 Isolations concerns highlighted. Assurances from offices that the wellbeing of 

all is a priority. Lots of information is communicated to the workforce and is 
accessible via MyZone on the intranet.

RESOLVED; THAT, members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board to monitor the Workforce 
work stream as part of the council’s Covid 19 recovery plan. 

3.3 Digital

Councillor Hinds introduced this item and in doing so highlighted the fast pace in 
which the council enhanced the infrastructure to handle the vast numbers of remote 
workers and the roll out of new equipment.

Steven Fry, Assistant Director explained how the council has used Microsoft Teams 
to recruit, carry on with the democratic process of the organisation and engage with 
our residents, young people/families just to name a few examples.

The team developed solutions for humanitarian response, discretionary business 
grants, triangulation of children’s services data and a bespoke application to manage 
testing, tracing and outbreak management.

Page 9



4

Everything you traditionally had on your desk was unified into a single device, 
allowing users to work from any location coupled with the maximum amount of 
security deployed to protect the organisation.

Steven highlighted the progress of the department has been down to real 
collaboration, appetite for change focusing resources and skillsets on the right 
priorities. 

In response, Debbie Brown, Strategic Director explained that the deployment of 
computers to schools was gifted to the LA from the DFE, legalities had to be put in 
place. Therefore, there was a slight delay in dispersal.

The government operates a working from home allowance scheme for employees 
that have to work from home on a regular basis. Employees can claim tax relief 
directly from HMRC.

The position statement prompted the following observations:
 General feeling that virtual meetings are more productive and less time 

intensive, providing more time to read through reports;
 Suggested a hybrid of virtual and venue based meetings – social distancing 

permitting;
 Acknowledgement of the exceptional support from ICT and supporting 

officers.

RESOLVED; THAT, members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board to continue to monitor 
digital developments and information going forward; to be dovetailed with the workforce 
report.

4.     Progress of the scrutiny panels work programmes

4.1 Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel.

Councillor Morris reported that the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel has a 
comprehensive work programme going forward. Scheduled items include:

 Care Homes;
 National Reports of the impact of COVID-19 on the Black and Minority Ethnic 

(BAME) Communities;
 Implications for Mental Health Services of the impact caused to individuals 

and services by the COVID-19 pandemic.

4.2 Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel.

Councillor Burch informed members that the Panel have had 2 informal meetings 
since lockdown, the first formal meeting being in July. Schedules items for 
consideration include:

 Community safety;
 Recycling;
 Bereavement services.

Page 10



5

4.3 Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel.

Councillor Sharpe reported that the Panel will be considering:
 Spatial Framework;
 Public transport;
 Clean Air Plan;
 Capital Programme.

4.4. Children’s Scrutiny Panel.

The Panel will take forward a couple of reviews that were due to be completed as 
lockdown occurred.

Councillor Brocklehurst reported that he was due to meet with the Lead Member for 
Children’s Services to agree priorities for the Panel to consider.

Councillor K Garrido asked if the Children’s SP could consider the readiness of 
Salford schools for the September term, and whether we are able to use other 
buildings to accommodate pupils if social distancing measures are still in place.
 
RESOLVED: THAT, Members of the Board noted the updates to the Panels work 
programmes.

5.  Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2020

RESOLVED: THAT, the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2020 were 
approved as correct record.

6.    Work programme

The Board noted the work programme as presented, including agreed updates as of 
today reports.

RESOLVED THAT, the Overview and Scrutiny Board work programme be noted and 
updated accordingly.

7.     Any other business.

There were no items raised.

8.    Date of the next meeting

To be held on Wednesday 5 August 2020. 1.30pm briefing for members only.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Overview and Scrutiny Board 
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker as of 27July 2020

Please note: There will be a Members only briefing at 1.30pm, with the main committee commencing at 2.00pm (unless otherwise 
stated

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic Responsible officer (s)

5 August 2020 4th Quarter Outturn Report

Briefing – announced government support (Covid 19 Recovery Plan).

Councillor Hinds, Joanne Hardman, 
Chris Hesketh

2 September 
2020

1. Treasury Management Outturn Report – schedule September each 
year.

2. 1st Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule September each year

3. Following on from the July meeting, a more detailed report of the 
council’s financial position (Covid 19 Recovery Plan).

Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

7 October 2020 COVID-19 Recovery Action Planning – Workforce and Digital  Work 
Stream.

Councillors Hinds & Bentham, Debbie 
Brown, Sam Betts & Steven Fry

4 November 
2020

Mid Year Treasury Management report – schedule November each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

2 December 
2020

2nd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule December each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



2

ABEYANCE LIST

Corporate Performance report
Half year report – December 2019 def to March 2020
End of year report – July 202

Jacquie Russell

Digital You - digital inclusion project  (was schedule update 
July’ 20) 
(Last report submitted April 2019).

Debbie Brown, Kathy Kennedy, Adam Micklethwaite, Director 
of Social Inclusion at Good Things Foundation and Cllr Hinds.

Update on the integration with the CCG: Children’s, Adults and 
Public Health

Cllr Merry, Charlotte Ramsden, Muna Abdel-Aziz and Cllr 
Reynolds

Awareness session: Budget & Treasury Management Finance officers

Procurement Strategy 
(Living wage and social value considerations)

(Last report submitted June 2019).

Anthony Hilton, Debbie Brown and Cllr Hinds

Apprenticeship Strategy – update 

(Last the report submitted July 2019).

Cllr Bentham - Executive Support Member, Sam Betts and 
Frank O’Sullivan

Fair Funding Review Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Business Rates Retention Scheme update Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Investment: University/Council Master Plan TBC

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MONITORING REPORTS

Corporate Performance report Councillor Boshell and Jacquie 

P
age 14



3

Half year report – December & end of year report July Russell
Treasury Management Strategy. Schedule February each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 

Hardman
Treasury Management Outturn Report – schedule September each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 

Hardman
Mid Year Treasury Management report – schedule November  each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 

Hardman
Revenue Budget and Capital Programme. Schedule February each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 

Hardman

1st Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule September each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

2nd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule December each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

3rd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report – Schedule March each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

4th Quarter - Outturn Report. Schedule July each year. Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

REVIEWS

Consideration of the Digital Function re-design – TBC Steven Fry

Social Value – TBC

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER

No recommendations presently outstanding

P
age 15



4

Portfolio of the Board: Membership – 11 Members:

1.Co-ordinating the work of the Scrutiny Panels. 
2. Scrutinising corporate services. 
3. conducting a programme of value for money scrutinies.
4. Considering reports from the Audit and Accounts Committee.
5. Scrutinising overall budget matters and all other financial 
matters, including the Treasury Management Strategy.
6. To receive reports from the Scrutiny Panels on a six-monthly 
basis.
7. To consider requests for scrutiny reviews under the Councillor 
Call for Action process (other than calls for action relating to 
Crime and Disorder matters where requests shall be referred 
directly to the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel. 

Councillors 
 Turner
 Garrido, Karen
 Bellamy
 Brocklehurst
 Burch
 Jolley - Chair
 King – Vice Chair
 Morris
 Nelson
 Sharpe
 Pevitt

P
age 16


	Agenda
	3 Outturn Budget Monitoring report
	5 Minutes of the meeting held on the 1 July 2020
	6 Work programme

